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Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy

Trustees’ Report

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of
the charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2022. The annual report serves the purposes of
both a trustees’ report, and a directors’ report under company law.

The trust operates a two-form entry Church of England Primary Academy serving a catchment area to
the west of Fareham.

Over the past few years there has been a suggestion that an additional form of entry may need to be
placed at the Academy to accommodate additional local housing, as per Fareham Borough Council’s
(FBC) agreed Housing Development Plan. This plan has now been finalised and building is underway but
an additional form of entry at the Academy has not been deemed necessary.

It has a pupil capacity of 420 and had a roll of 406 in the school spring census.

Whilst Government restrictions relating to the Covid 19 pandemic were lifted during the course of the
last year, absence due to illness both as a result of Covid (and in particular, the Omicrom variant), as
well as a surge in other illnesses, continued to have an impact on the school. In particular, this affected

staffing during the first half of the year.

Structure, Governance and Management

Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.
The Trustees of Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy are also the directors of the charitable
company for the purposes of company law. The charitable company operates as Hook-with-Warsash
Church of England Academy.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year and to the date these accounts are approved are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members’ Liability

Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable
company in the event of it being wound up while they are a Member, or within one year after they
cease to be a Member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities
contracted before they ceased to be a Member.



Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy

Trustees’ Report

Trustees’ Indemnities
The Companies Act 2006 s236 requires disclosure concerning qualifying third-party indemnity
provisions. '

Since 2019/20 indemnity has been provided by the Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA), with cover as
follows:
¢ The RPA Administrator will subject to the Definitions, Extensions, Exclusions and Conditions of
the Rules indemnify:

o the Member in respect of losses arising as a result of indemnifying an indemnified
Person in accordance with its legal obligations, for loss arising from claims made against
the Indemnified Person, during a Membership Year;

o in an Inactive Academy Trust that is a former Member in respect of losses arising as a
result of indemnifying an Indemnified Person in accordance with its legal obligations,
for loss arising from claims made against the Indemnified Person, during a Membership
Year or any subsequent period up to the point the Inactive Academy Trust is dissolved.

Provided always that the RPA Administrator shall not be liable:
o for any Claim where the cause of such claim occurred or that was alleged to have occurred prior
to the date of the signing of the funding agreement for the relevant academy;
e tothe extent that an indemnity is provided by an insurance policy;
¢ for claims that the Member had prior knowledge of before opting to join the RPA;
e for claims from an Inactive Academy Trust that was not a Member at the point in time that it
became inactive.

The RPA Administrator's Limit of Liability in respect of each academy shall be £10,000,000 each and
every loss and shall be the maximum aggregate liability of the RPA Administrator from all losses from an
academy whose Academy Trust is a Member during any one Membership Year.

The Member Retention is Nil.
At the March 2020 meeting of the Finance and Personnel Committee the Committee, having observed

no actual or potential instances that might arise to a claim in the previous five years, the Committee
decided to remove staff absence as a standing item at future meetings.



Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy

Trustees’ Report

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees
The Full Governing Body consists of 20 Members constituted as follows:

e Three Parent Governors elected by secret ballot of parents of pupils attending the Academy, or,
in the event of there being few candidates than available places on the Governing Body,
appointed by the Governing Body;

e Ten First Governors or Governors appointed by the Members of the Academy Trust;

e Four First or Appointed Foundation Governors (1 of whom is, ex officio, the incumbent),
nominated by the Parochial Church Council and appointed by the Foundation Members of the
Academy Trust (in practice the Foundation Members would be unlikely to appoint any person
opposed by the Portsmouth and Winchester Diocesan Board of Education);

¢ The Headteacher (ex officio);

e Two Staff Governors one of whom shall be a teacher, elected by secret ballot of the staff of the
Academy.

At the beginning of the academic Year, the Members of the Trust meet to review pending vacancies on
the Governing Body, and instruct the Company Secretary to put in place, at the appropriate times, the
procedures necessary for the appointment or election of Governors.

Vacancies for Appointed Governors are advertised on both the Academy and the Church website, on
the Academy’s Facebook page and on Hantsweb. In addition, FBC, Warsash Residents’ Association and
both Portsmouth and Southampton Universities are informed. Governors use their own networks with
local businesses to make vacancies known to the wider community. Use is also made of Governors for
Schools and Inspiring Governance, with variable results.

Vacancies for Parent Governors are publicised on the Academy website, in the Headteacher’s regular
communications to parents, through Governors meeting parents at Parents’ Evenings and on the
Academy’s Facebook page. Elections are then held in accordance with the Articles of Association and
HCC procedures.

Vacancies for Staff Governors are publicised at Staff Meetings and elections, where necessary, are by
secret ballot.



Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy

Trustees’ Report

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees
New Governors are issued with a copy of the current Governors’ Handbook giving information on:

e Where do | Start? — Guidance for new Governors;

¢ Details of the Governing Body;

e Training Opportunities;

¢ Scheme of Delegation;

¢ Committees, Working Groups, Panels & Other Groups;

e Insurance/Legal Protection for Governors;

e Useful websites;

e Pen Portraits of Current Governors;

e Governing Body Committee Membership & those in Attendance 2021/22;

e Governing Body Officers 2021/22;

e Governing Body Terms of Reference 2021/22;

e Governing Body Policies;

e Financial Roles and Responsibilities;

e Guidance on Visits to the Academy by Governors;

¢ Meeting Dates 2021/22;

e Governing Body Cycle of Business 2021/22;

e Governors’ Statutory Responsibilities;

e Glossary of Terms.

In addition, new governors are issued with a copy of the Articles of Association and a breakdown of the
Governing Body’s discharge of its statutory duties.

The Academy purchases full access to face-to-face and on-line Governor Training provided by HCC and
details of training opportunities are posted on the Governors’ Portal of the Academy website.

New Governors attend Induction Training organised by HCC.

HCC GovernorHub requires that individual Governors book their own training but liaise with the
Development Training Governor.

New Governors meet with the Chair of Governors and the Headteacher and are expected to attend a
round of committee meetings before opting to join a particular committee. (In the event of a specific,
identified vacancy, new Governors may be asked to join a particular committee, in order to meet the
Governing Bod)/s strategic and operational needs). '

Mrs Heidi Healey, the Development and Training Governor is responsible for guiding new (and
established) Governors to appropriate training.

During 2021/22 the induction programme was reviewed and updated, and Mrs Heidi Healey is
responsible for the continued oversight of this.
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Trustees’ Report

Organisational Structure
The organisational and operational structure is detailed in the Scheme of Delegation which is published
on the Academy’s website.

There are two main committees that have some delegated powers, meet twice termly and report to the
Full Governing Body:

e Pupil Discipline, Curriculum & Early Years;

e Resources.

The delegated powers of these committees are defined in their Terms of Reference, with all decisions
being reported to the Full Governing Body for ratification.

There are three additional committees that meet at least once a term:
e Forging Links;
e Governance and Audit;
e Payand Appraisal.

The areas of responsibility of these committees are defined in their Terms of Reference, with all
decisions being reported to the Full Governing Body for ratification.

A standing Marketing, Promotion & Media Working-Group was established in June 2018 with the
primary aim of ensuring that the Academy roll is full. This group has been largely responsible for the
establishment and ongoing maintenance of the Academy’s Facebook presence.

The Resources Committee established a Development Working Group in September 2018 to consider
the medium and longer-term financial landscape. The Working Group’s investigations covered a range
of considerations, including the possibility of forming or joining a Multi-Academy Trust (MAT). As we
emerged from the effects of the Pandemic, further meetings were held in November 2021 and June
2022 to review and discuss possible future opportunities.

Governing Body Panels relating to:
e Staff Discipline;
e Discipline Appeals;
e Complaints;

are convened as required.

As a result of effective chairing of Full Governing Body and Committee meetings, the prompt writing
and circulation of accurate minutes and the use of the Governors’ Portal of the Academy website and of
Academy based e-mail accounts lines of internal communication and accountability are secure.
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Trustees’ Report

Organisational Structure (continued)
The Headteacher is the lead professional of the Academy and as such:
e manages the Academy, including its financial position, at a strategic and operational level;
e has the responsibility for the day-to day management of the Academy, including quality of
teaching, & educational standards, Human Resources and effective systems of internal control;
e |eads and manages all employees of the Academy;
¢ has a key role to involve the Governing Body when drawing up the Academy Strategic Plan;
e ensures that the Strategic Plan is implemented and that the Governing Body is fully involved in
e monitoring that implementation; :
e has authority for all tasks delegated by the governing body but not responsibility;
¢ . has delegated authority for:
o individual items of non-staffing expenditure (in line with the Strategic Plan) not
exceeding £1,000;
o amendments to the budget which do not exceed £1,000 and which do not increase the
total expenditure beyond the budget agreed by the Governing Body;
o alterations to the budget to reflect resources made available by the Local Authority (LA)
for Educational Health Care Plans and cases of extended sickness;
e as Accounting Officer, has personal responsibility for:
o the propriety and regularity of public finances for which she is answerable;
o keeping proper accounts and ensuring that financial statements are properly presented
and adequately supported; '
prudent and economical administration;
avoidance of waste and extravagance;
ensuring value for money;
efficient and effective use of resources in their charge;
advising the Members of the Academy Trust in writing if the Governing Body appears to
be failing to act as required by the terms of the Handbook or Funding Agreement.

O O O O ©O

The Business Manager is the Chief Financial Officer and is responsible for day-to-day procedures e.g.:
e processing orders and invoices, collection and banking of dinner money, trips, petty cash, etc.;
e ensuring accuracy of accounting information;
e providing appropriate financial reports for Headteacher and for Governors;
e assisting with other financial tasks e.g., budget preparation, costing the Strategic Plan and
managing the devolved capital budget;
e ensuring appropriate documentation is available to support financial management.
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Trustees’ Report

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
All arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of staff are carried out in accordance with the:

Appraisal of Teachers’ Performance Policy;

Support Staff Performance Management Policy;

Teachers’ Pay Policy;

Support Staff Pay Policy;
These are reviewed in detail annually by the Pay and Appraisal Committee and, following consultation
with staff, ratified by the Full Governing Body.

In setting pay and remuneration, Governors are mindful of the Department for Education (DfE)
Guidance — Setting Executive Salaries: Guidance for Academy Trusts.

The Headteacher’s Appraisal is carried out by a panel of three Governors, supported by an external
advisor appointed by the Governing Body. in accordance with the Appraisal of Teachers’ Performance
Policy, the Headteacher’s targets are set at a meeting of the panel at the beginning of the Autumn
Term. These confidential targets relate to Academy Performance and the Published Annual Strategic
Plan. Review meetings are held during the year with a final formal meeting at the end of the Summer
Term. The Pay and Appraisal Committee decides on any pay progression for the Headteacher, on the
basis of a report from this final meeting, at a further meeting at the beginning of the following Autumn
term. This meeting also confirms the Headteacher’s Salary range for that year.

The Assistant/Deputy Headteachers’ Appraisal is carried out by the Headteacher. In accordance with
the Appraisal of Teachers’ Performance Policy, the Assistant Headteachers’ targets are set at a meeting
at the beginning of the Autumn Term. These confidential targets relate to Academy Performance and
the Published Annual Strategic Plan. Review meetings are held during the year with a final formal
meeting at the end of the Summer Term. The Pay and Appraisal Committee decides on any pay
progression for the Assistant /Deputy Headteachers, on the basis of a report from this final meeting, at
a further meeting at the beginning of the following Autumn term. This meeting also confirms the
Assistant/Deputy Headteachers’ Salary range for that year.

Other Members of the teaching staff are appraised by the Headteacher and the Assistant/Deputy
Headteachers’ and a similar pattern of deciding on any pay progression is followed.

The Business Manager (Chief Financial Officer)'s Performance Management is carried out by the
Headteacher. In accordance with the Support Staff Performance Management Policy, appropriate
targets are set at a first meeting of the cycle in April. Review meetings are held during the year with a
final formal meeting the following January. The Pay and Appraisal Committee decides on any pay
progression, on the basis of a report from this final meeting, at a further meeting in January.

The Performance Management of other members of the Support Staff is arranged in accordance with
the published policy and a similar pattern of deciding on any pay progression is followed.
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Trustees’ Report

Trade union facility time
The Academy has less than 49 Full-time employees and is therefore not required to report on Trade
Union Facility Time.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations
The Academy is connected to the Diocese of Portsmouth and, specifically with the Parish Church of St
Mary’s, Hook-with-Warsash.

Through subscription to HCC Governor Services, the Academy is a member of the Hampshire South-East
Governors’ Forum.

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons) )
The Academy has less than 250 employees so is therefore not required to report on engagement with
employees.

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the trust
Due to its size, the Academy is not required to report on engagement with suppliers, customers and
others in a business relationship with the trust.

Objectives and Activities

Objects and Aims

The Objects of the Academy Trust are those explicitly and implicitly detailed in the Articles of
Association:

e to provide the strategic lead to a high-quality Primary School with a Church of England
character, offering a broad and balanced curriculum to pupils in Warsash and its immediate
vicinity, thus creating a happy, secure and stimulating learning environment based on Christian
principles in which all Members of the Academy community can grow in self-esteem and
develop their potential as human beings;

e to provide recreational and other leisure facilities for the inhabitants of Warsash and its
immediate vicinity, particularly those who suffer social and other disadvantage.

10
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Trustees’ Report

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
Strategic Plan September 2021-22
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Additional Strategic Commitments 2021-22

Sites & Buildings

Install a new VOIP telephone system;
Continue to maintain a rolling programme for the replacement of IT hardware and to
investigate ways to futureproof the schools ICT infrastructure;

Submit an application for Condition Improvement Funding for the repair of the roof in the

central part of the school;

Update EYFS outside environment in line with current recommendations;

Repair or replace entrance gates to the school.
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Trustees’ Report

Objectives, Strategies and Activities (continued)
Community Links

e Develop cluster school initiatives;

e Maintain excellent links with the Church;

o Continue to develop the increased use of the site by adult and children’s groups, during term
time and during the school holidays, including use of the Environment Area;

e Continue to seek to improve external signage;

e Further develop links with Care Homes;

e Further develop pupil links with pre-schools;

¢ Further develop marketing strategies to promote the school within the community and wider
area.

Governance
e Recruit new Governors from across the community as necessary;
e Maintain forward financial planning to ensure sustainability;
e Develop Individual Training Plans for Governors which include Induction;
e Continue to develop the sophistication of monitoring by Governors;
e Ensure that all Safeguarding measures remain up-to-date and fully implemented;
e Update the Business Continuity Plan and review in light of demands placed on the school.

Pupil Voice
e The Collective Worship Council will continue to play an active role in Collective Worship,

including continuing to develop new themes;

e Year 6 Prefects will reward positive behaviour from younger pupils and consider how they can
further develop their role in the school;

e Continue to allow the School Council to identify priority projects and initiatives in the school
and to raise funds where necessary;

e Governors to maintain and develop opportunities to meet groups of pupils and to implement
the Adopt-a-Governor programme in order to ‘hear’ the pupil voice;

e Eco-warriors will continue to develop ways to encourage recycling and expand eco-friendly
behaviours from pupils, staff and parents/carers. ‘

The progress of the plan was particularly monitored by the Pupil Discipline, Curriculum & Early Years

Committee but other areas were monitored, as appropriate, by other Governing Body Committees and
all aspects were reported to the Full Governing Body. :

12
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Trustees’ Report

Objectives, Strategies and Activities (continued)
The Governors’ Monitoring Plan continued to include:
e areas of development which had been confirmed during the Ofsted inspection of March 2018;
e areas of development which had been identified during the Statutory Inspection of Anglican &
Methodist Schools (SIAMs) of June 2015 (Forging Links Committee);
e the implementation of the Strategic Plan;
e the Governors’ Statutory Responsibilities;
¢ Health and Safety and Premises Management considerations.

Covid continued to impact upon the completion of monitoring reports in the first half of the year, due
to restrictions on visitors to the school. However, despite this Governors still managed to complete and
report on over twenty monitoring visits. Many of these covered more than one aspect, supporting the
Academy in the implementation of its plan during 2021/22, in addition to receiving presentations from
SLT and Subject Leaders at Pupil Discipline, Curriculum & Early Years Committee Meetings.

Members of the Resources Committee completed six site walkabouts with the Facilities Manager and
the staff Health and Safety Representative to monitor the management of the site and the Governor
with responsibility for Health & Safety maintained a continually updated record of Health & Safety
Management within the Academy.

The Internal Audit Officer led Members of the Resources Committee in visiting the Academy to carry
out regular financial checks in accordance with a published programme. The results of these visits were
reported to both the Resources and the Governance and Audit Committees in order to keep them
informed and in turn update the Full Governing Body via their Committee Minutes.

These processes contributed to Governors’ triangulation within the monitoring process, thus ensuring
that Governors were able to play a full part both in holding the Academy to account for its success and
in future Strategic Planning.

Public Benefit
In setting our objectives and planning our activities the Trustees have carefully considered the Charity
Commission’s general guidance on public benefit. '

In particular, they satisfy the benefit aspect of public benefit by ensuring that the purposes of the
Academy are for the advancement of its pupils for an education purpose. The public aspect of the
public benefit is satisfied as the Academy benefits the public in general by admitting pupils to the
Academy according to agreed admission criteria that disbars no particular group. The Academy also,
increasingly, makes its facilities available for community use.

13
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Trustees’ Report

Strategic Report

Achievements and Performance

In order to assess the achievements of the Academy Trust we refer to pupil progress and attainment
indicators as defined by the Academy’s own tracking and national attainment and progress indicators.
The analysis below indicates pupil outcomes with regard to the Key Stage 1 & Key Stage 2 SATs 2022
results and Phonics and includes the outcomes for Disadvantaged Pupils.

Early Years Foundation Stage

Year Reading Writing Maths GLD
group Emerging | GLD |l Emerging | GLD || Emerging | GLD |
EYFS 17 g3 |l 33 67 [N 16 g4 M -5
There is no comparative data as a new Early Year Framework was introduced in 2022

Reading Writing Maths

WTS- ARE+ | GDS WTS- ARE+ | GDS WTS- ARE+ | GDS

Yr2-2022 14 87 20 15 85 18 13 87 18
Yr2-2019 18 83 26 20 80 19 14 86 21
Yrl This year’s threshold is 32 —84% pass (National in 2019 — 82%)
Phonics
Yr2 This year’s threshold is 32 — 50% (4 out of 8) pass

Phonics Autumn test 87% (for the cohort of children who did not complete the phonics
check last year in year 1 due to Covid).

In EYFS there was a drop in the overall GLD (Good level of development) level. This is because of the
lower GLD in writing. There was a significant on entry gap in the children’s language and listening skills.
This has been targeted and the positive effects can be seen in the much higher reading GLD figure. The
knock-on effect of this gap has resulted in the lower writing figure. '

Phonics was slightly down but this reflected the reduced time in school due to lock down. Key stage 1
resuits show a fall in GDS (Greater Depth at the Expected Standard). This was expected as the reduced
time in schoo! meant that the children did not have the time to embed the higher learning and
independence required for GDS. The Academy’s catch-up strategies have ensured the WTS {Working
Towards Expected Standard) decreased and the expected (ARE — Age Related Expectations) increased.

14
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Trustees’ Report

Achievements and Performance (continued)

SATs results

KS1:
Hook with Warsash 2022 National Average 2019
Subject Pupils who achieved Age Related Pupils who achieved Age Related
Expectations Expectations
Reading 87% 75%
Writing (TA) 85% 69%
Maths 86% 76%
KS2:
Hook with Warsash 2022 'National Average 2022
Subject Pupils who achieved Age Related Pupils who achieved Age Related
Expectations Expectations
Reading 79% 75%
Writing (TA) 85% 71%
SPaG 80% 74%
Maths 90% 73%

Disadvantaged Pupils

The Pupil Premium Funding Statement is available on the school’s website. This details our statement
of intent, the challenges we face and our intended outcome. The strategy explains the activities we
implement for and the way we utilise our funding.

Disadvantaged pupils have received Catch Up sessions during the Spring and Summer terms of 2022.
Children were placed in groups of no more than 3 children and had up to 15 hours of tuition delivered
by a trained teacher. These sessions were blocked over a period of 3 to 4 weeks. The teacher was
guided by class teachers as to the priority areas of learning. Overall good progress was seen during
these sessions.

The year one phonics check and end of KS outcomes for disadvantage children were:
Year 1 phonics check (4 children) — 75%

Year 2 SATs (4 chiidren) — 100% reading, 100% writing, 100% maths

Year 6 SATS (5 children) — 20% reading, 40% writing, 80% maths

Monitoring:
During this term we have focused our attention on work scrutiny. All judgements have been good or

better. Our moderation processes have also been carried out during this half term following teachers
attending cluster moderation sessions, at which our judgements were deemed to be accurate.

15
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Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy

Trustees’ Report

Achievements and Performance (continued)
Other areas of success during the year included:

e meeting the targets set by the Governing Body in its Statement of Internal Control to enhance

the quality of Governance by:

e in accordance with DfE guidelines, completing the process of appointing additional Members of
the Academy Trust who are not Governors of the Academy in order to ensure that there is a
“significant degree of separation between the individuals who are members and those who are

trustees(governors)” so that members can exercise their powers with objectivity”

o in accordance with the letter from Eileen Milner, Accounting Officer, ESFA, to Academy
Accounting Officers, stating that, Chairs must receive financial reports every month, the

current robust system of twice termly reporting to the Finance & Personnel Committee
and thence to the Full Governing Body, supported by a regular programme of financial
checks led by the Internal Audit Officer and monthly financial statements being made
available to the Chair of the Finance & Personnel Committee, was augmented by

monthly reports being copied to the Chair of Governors;

o ensuring that bank reconciliations are evidenced as being reviewed throughout the

year by someone independent of the preparer {Audit Findings);

o establishing a system of annual salary statements for support staff (Audit Findings);

e the strategic lead given by the Governing Body (see pages 9-12);
e the quality of leadership of Academy development given by the SLT;

e the ongoing rigorous and wide-ranging monitoring of the quality of teaching across the
Academy by the Senior Leadership Team, and the monitoring of this process by the Governing

Body;
o throughout the year all lessons were judged as at least ‘good’ or better (see above);

e the robust Strategic Plan, which continued to address issues related to pupil progress and

factors impacting on that progress;

e the continuing high level of quality monitoring carried out by Governors in support of the

Academy;
e the continuation of the Adopt-a-Governor initiative;
e the further development of more substantive links with the Church;
e the continuing involvement of the School Council in the development of pupil initiatives;
e successful residentials/day visits to:
o residential visit to Stubbington Study Centre — Year 4
o residential trip to: Dorset — Year 5
o daytripsforYears1,2,3,4and6
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Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy

Trustees’ Report

Achievements and Performance (continued)

¢ therole of the Collective Worship Council in the ongoing development of Collective Worship;

e the continuing process of upgrading and maintaining the ICT Infrastructure and equipment,
within the context of a two/three-year plan;

e the greater use of Academy website, together with regular letters from the Headteacher and
the Chair of Governors and the Academy’s new Facebook presence to improve communication
with stakeholders;

¢ the continuing support of the Academy by parents, with the Parent Teacher and Friends
Association (PTFA) raising £26,582 during the year — greatly appreciated by Governors, staff and
pupils alike.

Key Performance Indicators

The Academy has an income that is set by national criteria. It considers Benchmarking activities,
although variations in organisational structures and accounting procedures between Academies can
limit the value of the exercise, in order to review its performance against Academies operating in a
similar manner. In particular, consideration is given to employee and other costs and overall
expenditure against pupil performance to ensure that the Academy gives value for money.

Governors’ Skills are kept under review and no significant gaps were identified for existing Governors
during 2021/22. Due to the number of new Governors joining the Governing Body throughout the year
the Induction Policy was reviewed and updated and a mentoring system re-established. A transition
programme was put in place to prepare for the resignation of the Clerk to the Governors in August
2021, with a view to the Company Secretary also taking on this role from September 2022.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the
Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
For this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of
Accounting Policies.

Promoting the success of the company
Due to its size, the Academy is not required to report on promoting the success of the company.
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Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy

Trustees’ Report

Financial Review

The principal source of funding for the Academy is the ESFA. A detailed Academy Strategic Plan is
prepared (see pages 9-12) and this plan ensures that financial decisions are made which support the
key objectives of the Academy Trust.

The principal financial management policies adopted and/or reviewed during the year are:

e Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy;

e Charging & Remission Policy;

¢ Competitive Tendering Policy;

e Debt Recovery Policy;

e Finance Policy
o Appendix 1 - Financial Roles and Responsibilities;
o Appendix 2 — Best Value Statement;
o Appendix 3 —Statement of Financial Expectations;
o Appendix 4 — Annual Statement of Internal Control;

e Reserves Policy;

e Sponsorship Policy.

As a consequence of the sound and prudent financial management by the Accounting Officer and the
Business Manager (Chief Financial Officer), working with the Resources Committee, the budgeted in
year surplus for 2022 of £59,915 was reduced at Budget Revision to a surplus of £13,309 mainly as a
result of budgeting for additional staffing expense because of Covid and the redevelopment of the Early
Years outside area. By the end of the year the situation had improved to a surplus of £62,750 (excluding
restricted pension and fixed asset reserves). The change was due to the employment of additional
members of teaching staff to cover Covid related issues e.g., staff absence, catch up tutoring, cover for
shielding staff and cover for pregnant women in excess of 28 weeks. By the end of the year the financial
position had improved to a greater surplus due to our inability to recruit a maternity cover teacher
{who had been budgeted for) necessitating internal cover; the reduced expenditure on IT equipment;
and savings from the non-spending of an emergency fund for Covid related issues.

The Academy trust has £150,743 invested at Lloyds Bank on a 32-day renewable basis and £153,908

invested at Lloyds Bank in a nine-month fixed rate bond with a yield of 0.2%. The Resources Committee
reviews the Investment Policy annually and reviews its investment position at each meeting.
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Trustees’ Report

Reserves Policy
The Reserves Policy, as amended in May 2022 stated, “Our aim is to use the allocated funding each year

" for the full benefit of our current pupils”. However, we also consider it necessary to carry forward some
reserves:

e to provide sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants;

e toinvest in future years’ priorities for the children at the Academy, specifically the completion
of any necessary significant repairs to the fabric of the building, including any Academy
Contribution towards the funding of any project for which a successful application for a CIF
grant is submitted;

e to exercise due prudence in a situation in which there remains some financial uncertainty due
to: '

o possible changes in Government policy and possible adverse changes in funding;
o HCC's admissions procedures in the immediate area;

e asupport fund for the Academy’s self-insurance against staff absence;

e asupport fund for any non-recoverable additional expenses incurred by the Academy in respect
of the current Coronavirus Pandemic.

In exceptional circumstances, the Governing Body may decide to hold temporarily a larger contingency
reserve, in which case the decision will be made at a meeting of the Full Governing Body and be
minuted.

The total value of funds (as audited) at 31 August 2022 is as follows:.
e Unrestricted (free) reserves of £180,871 (2021: £156,957);
e Arestricted fixed asset fund of £3,697,157 (2021: £3,736,146), which can only be realised
through disposal of tangible fixed assets;
e A pension deficit of £195,000 (2021: £1,118,000);
e Other restricted funds of £260,151 (2021: £221,315);
e Total funds of £3,943,179 (2021: £2,996,418).

The total of restricted and unrestricted income funds is £441,022 (2021: £378,272).

The projected revenue surplus on the 1 September 2022 - 31 August 2023 budget is £35,827, giving a
Cumulative Surplus (balance in hand) of £476,849.

The budget set supports the priorities identified in the Strategic Plan 2022/23.

No fund is materially in deficit.
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Trustees’ Report

Investment Policy

The Academy trust ensures that investment decisions are made where it can maximize income for the
Academy by investing rather than holding cash balances. Currently £153,908 is invested in Lloyds Bank
(see above). It is anticipated that all investments will be tied to the bank that the Academy Trust
chooses to hold and manage its cash balances."

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The income of the Academy only faces the uncertainty of the possibility of diminishing public resource
as it is entirely state funded. This uncertainty has also been exacerbated by current national economic
and financial uncertainty. The principal risk to the Academy pertains to pupil numbers as its income is
dependent on the number of pupils on roll but this risk is now reduced due to the additional housing in
development that will fall within the school’s catchment area, the impact of which should start to take
effect from September 2023. Planning approval has been given for in excess of 400 dwellings on a
number of development sites within the school catchment area; the first of these developments are
expecting first occupation by the end of 2022.

The Academy will be admitting 53 pupils (against a PAN of 60) for its Year R intake in September 2022.
It is anticipated that the number on roll on 1 September 2022 will be 406.

The Governing Body remains fully aware of the Government’s policy to establish MATs and the White
Paper and will keep this under review.

The Governing Body is also concerned by:
e the implications of the ongoing underfunding of National Teacher’s Pay Awards;
e the ‘hidden’ reduction in the funding of ‘front-line’ educational services; and awaits with
interest the outcome of recent political statements on educational funding;
e the volatility of Global utility prices. The Academy changed Gas & Electricity provider in
October 2021 to take advantage of a two-year fixed term contract the contract expires in
October 2023.
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Trustees’ Report

Fundraising
As part of its work within the community, the Academy Trust undertakes fundraising activities, for
example through fetes, cake sales, non-uniform days and other projects identified by the School
Council. The Academy Trust raises funds in order to support its own operations and also to make
donations to local and national charities. The Academy Trust undertakes all such activities itself, with
the help of its students and their families: We confirm that when fundraising:

¢ No unsolicited approaches are made to members of the public;

e No commercial participators are used;

e No regularity schemes or standards are applicable;

¢ No complaints were made to the Academy Trust during the year.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting
As the trust has not consumed more than 40,000 kWh of energy in this reporting period, it qualifies as a
low energy user under these regulations and is not required to report on its emissions, energy
consumption or energy efficiency activities.

Plans for Future Periods

The key objectives for the future are to continue to maintain and improve standards, attainment,
progress and well-being of pupils and the well-being of staff. As in previous years an annual strategic
review will be undertaken with this in mind, and detailed actions, including any necessary revisions to
the Academy Strategic Plan, formulated as a result of this review.

The Pupil Discipline, Curriculum & Early Years Committee will continue to lead on the monitoring of the
Curriculum, of Teaching and Learning and of Pupil attainment, progress and well-being.

The Resources Committee will continue to monitor the budget closely, being mindful of the agreed
three-year budget projection, and wifl prepare contingency plans to be implemented in the event of
any future financial allocation issues and will lead on the monitoring of staff well-being.

The Resources Committee-will monitor Health & Safety matters — continually striving to improve
practice - oversee the agreed further development programme to maximise the quality of the site as a
learning environment. The Forging Links Committee will monitor Academy-Church-Community
interaction and lead in the preparation for the up-coming (SIAMs). Additionally, the Governance &
Audit Committee refined its Internal Audit Role to ensure that the current robust procedures are fully
reported.
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Trustees’ Report

Plans for Future Periods {continued)
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Additional Strategic Commitments 2022-23
Resources

* Investigate improvement to Wi-Fi in Teachers’ workroom and Environmental classroom;

e Continue to maintain a rolling programme for the replacement of IT hardware and to

investigate ways to future proof the school’s ICT infrastructure;

e Submit an application for Condition Improvement Funding for the repair of the roof in the

central part of the school;
¢ Investigate options for reducing the school’s carbon footprint, including solar panels;
e Repair or replace entrance gates to the school;

e Assess external woodwork around the site and put rolling programme in place to improve

these.
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Trustees’ Report

Plans for Future Periods (continued)
Wider Community Links
e Maintain excellent links with the Church;

e Develop cluster school initiatives;

e Continue to ensure the increased use of the site by adult and children’s groups, during term
time and school holidays, including use of the Environment Area;

e Continue to seek to improve external signage;

o Further develop links with Care Homes;

e Further develop pupil links with pre-schools;

e Continue marketing strategies to promote the school within the community and wider area.

Governance
e Recruit new Governors from across the community as necessary;
e Maintain forward financial planning to ensure sustainability;
e Embed induction processes for new Governors;
e Continue to develop the sophistication of monitoring by Governors;
e Ensure that all Safeguarding measures remain up-to-date and fully impfemented;
e Update the Business Continuity Plan and review in light of demands placed on the school;
e Continue exit interviews/questionnaires for Staff and Governors to inform planning;
o Keep up to date with Government’s plans regarding Academisation.

Pupil Voice

e The Collective Worship Council will continue to play an active role in Collective Worship,
including continuing to develop new themes;

. e Year 6 Prefects will reward positive behaviour from younger pupils and consider how they can
further develop their role in the school;

e Continue to allow the School Council to identify priority projects and initiatives in the school
and to raise funds where necessary. Invite a governor to attend a School council meeting at
some point through the year;

e Governors to maintain and develop opportunities to meet groups of pupils and continue the
Adopt-a-Governor programme to ‘hear’ the pupil voice;

e Eco-warriors will continue to develop ways to encourage recycling and expand eco-friendly
behaviours from pupils, staff and parents/carers.

Funds Held as Custodian Trustee on Behalf of Others
None
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Auditor

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:
there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware;

the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees,
as the company directors, on 5 December 2022 and signed on the board’s behalf by:

Luke Bailey (Dec 7, 2072 15:07 GMT)

Mr Luke Bailey
Chair of Trustees
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Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Hook-with-Warsash
Church of England Academy has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and
otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE’s Governance Handbook and
Competency Framework for Governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good
financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in
the funding agreement between Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy and the Secretary of
State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material
weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance i

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and
in the Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met seven times
during the year. Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Qut-of a possible
Mr R. Clear 2 3
Mr L. Bailey 7 7
Mrs K. Bartlett 7 7
Mr P. Caiger-Watson 7 (2 by proxy) 7
Mrs C. Denyer 4 (1 by proxy) 5
Mr I. Downie 6 7
Mrs A. Ford 5 (1 by proxy) 5
Miss C. Forder - 7 (1 by proxy) 7
Mrs R. Graham 6 7
Mrs H. Healey 7 (2 by proxy) 7
Mr R. Johnson 5 (4 by proxy) 7
Mrs E. McQuiston 1 (1 by proxy) 2
Mrs F. Munro 2 2
Mr D. Nice 7 (1 by proxy) 7
Mrs J. Nunn 7 (1 by proxy) 7
Mrs G. Osborne 5 (1 by proxy) 5
Miss E. Ransley 3 (1 by proxy) 3
Mr D. Scott-Batey 0 4
Rev. M. Terry 7 (2 by proxy) 7
Mrs J. Ward 5 (1 by proxy) 7
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Governance (continued)

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mr |. Wilkie 7 (1 by proxy) 7
Mrs. S. Willoughby 7 7
Mrs N. Griffiths 2 (2 by proxy) 4

The overall attendance rate at Full Governing Body Meetings was 86.5%.

Whilst attendance was lower than in 2020-2021, attendance figures in general were not a cause for
concern. Mr Scott-Batey and Mrs McQuiston had both found it difficult to attend meetings due to other
commitments and both chose to stand down during the first half of the year. Mr Johnson was unwell
for a large part of the year and therefore unable to attend for this reason. Throughout the period of
Covid restrictions all meetings were held remotely and when the restrictions were lifted the option to
attend remotely still remained.

Due to the ongoing effects of the Covid-19 pandemic, some meetings of the Governing Body and
Committees continued to be held online, with face to face meetings gradually returning during the
year. Governor monitoring continued online for the early part of the year and face to face visits
resumed as restrictions were lifted when Covid levels within the school reduced. High levels of Covid
within the school at times limited the number of class visits carried out by Governors but a gradual
return to these was seen in the latter part of the year.

Conflicts of interest:

The Academy undertakes an annual check of pecuniary interests with all of the staff and governors —-
the register of which is held in the office. All governor meetings have an agenda item in which
governors and staff present are asked to make a declaration of any interests relating to items to be

discussed at the meeting. Staff governors are asked to leave governor meetings when items relating to
staff are discussed. [f a conflict of interest arises within the finance team, a senior leader will
undertake the procurement process.

Governance reviews:

e Mrs Clare Denyer was elected as a Parent Governor on 21st October 2021 to fill the vacancy left
by Mr Andrew Beadsworth on 24th July 2021;

e Mrs June Ward was appointed as a Foundation Governor on 29th October 2021 to fill the
vacancy left by Mr Nick St John who resigned on 7th September 2022;

e Mrs G Osborne was appointed as an Appointed Governor on 1st November 2021 to fill the
vacancy left by Mrs Fran Munro whose term ended on 31st October 2021;

e Mrs Anne Ford was appointed as an Appointed Governor on 1st December 2021 to fill the
vacancy left by Mrs Emma McQuiston who resigned on 23rd November 2021. She was then
appointed as a Foundation Governor on 21st January 2022 to fill the vacancy left by Mr Roger
Clear who resigned on 20th January 2022; '

e Miss Emily Ransley was elected as a Staff Governor on-1st March 2022 to fill the vacancy left by
Mrs Nicole Griffiths whose term ended on 28th February 2022,
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Governance (continued)
The Resources Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to;
e promote the Objects of the Academy Trust as detailed in paragraphs 4a and 4b of the Articles;
e carry out and monitor the implementation of the duties detailed in paragraphs 5and 6.1 - 6.9
of the Articles, specifically to:
o set and monitor the management of the annual budget and the three-year projected
budget plan;
o deciding how to spend the Academy’s budget in accordance with its Financial Policies;
o determine the staffing complement and a salary policy for the Academy;
e have oversight and keep under review the Academy’s Whistleblowing Policy;
e receive and consider reports on sustainability and future planning from the Development
Working Group;
e consider and report to the governing body on personnel aspects;
e consider and report to the governing body on the management of information.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended QOut of a possible
Mr i. Wilkie 6 (1 by proxy) 6
Mr L. Bailey 6 (2 by proxy) 6
Mr P. Caiger-Watson 6 (2 by proxy) 6
Mrs A. Ford 4 4
Mrs R. Graham 4 6
Mr R. Johnson 5 (4 by proxy) 6
Mrs E. McQuiston - 2 (1 by proxy) 2
Mr D. Nice 4 (2 by proxy) 6
Mrs G. Osborne 5 (1 by proxy) 5
Mrs N. Griffiths ‘ 1 3
Miss E. Ransley 3 3
Mr D. Scott-Batey 0 3
Mrs S. Willoughby 6 6

The overall attendance rate at Resources Committee meetings was 80.8%.
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Governance (continued)
The Governance & Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to;

review the structure and effectiveness of the Governing Body;

co-ordinate the Governing Body’s input into to annual Strategic Plan;

maintain an oversight of the effectiveness of the Governing Body, monitoring the exercise of
the Governing Bodies Statutory Responsibilities and system for Policy Review in order to ensure
that all policies are ones that Governors would be comfortable defending in public;

advise the Board/Governing Body and Accounting Officer on risk management and value for
money systems and frameworks, thus maintaining an oversight of internal control;

meet with the external auditor, to receive feedback on the annual audit;

review the fraud response plan and ensuring that all allegations of fraud or irregularity are
managed and investigated appropriately;

supporting the work of the Internal Audit Officer.

In addition, the Committee maintains an oversight of Governor Self-Evaluation.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mr R. Clear 1 2
Mr L. Bailey 4 (1 by proxy) 4
Mrs K. Bartlett 4 (1 by proxy) 4
Mr P. Caiger-Watson 2 2
Mrs H. Healey 3 4
Mr D. Nice 4 (1 by proxy) 4
Mr |. Wilkie 4 (1 by proxy) 4
Mrs S. Willoughby 4 4

The overall attendance rate at Governance & Audit Committee meetings was 90.6%.
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Review of Value for Money

As Accounting Officer the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers
good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money
refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources
received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust’s use of its resources has provided good value
for money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can
be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for
the Academy Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

e with the Governing Body continuing to hold the Staffing Structure and the Pay Policies under
review to ensure that the needs of the pupils the objectives of the Academy are met in the
most cost-effective way;

e ensuring that the provision of services by outside bodies is kept under review by relevant
Committees, in accordance with a published calendar, and more cost-effective Service Level
Agreements are negotiated; '

e ensuring that all expenditure is kept under review and that more effective administration leads
to savings;

e seeking to ensure that the parents of all pupils in Key Stage 1 who are entitled to Free School
Meals, register for these, thus maximising Pupil Premium income;

e ensuring that principles of best value are applied at all times.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate
all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives'. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control
has been in place in Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy for the period 1 September 2021
to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with
the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.
The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September
2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.
This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.
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The Risk and Control Framework
The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular
management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a
system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:
e comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;
e regular reviews by the Resources Committee of reports which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;
e setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
¢ clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
¢ identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to
appoint Mr Darren Nice MBA, FCCA, a trustee and certified accountant, as internal auditor.

The internal auditor’s role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks
on the Academy Trust’s financial and other systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current
period included:

e testing of payroll systems;

e testing of purchase systems;

e testing of control account/bank reconciliations;

o testing of compliance with the Academy Trust Handbook.

On a regular basis, the auditor reports to the Board of Trustees, through the Governance & Audit
Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees’
financial responsibilities and annually prepares an annual summary report to the committee outlining
the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider
actions and assess year on year progress.

A change to the Academy Trust Handbook requires separation between internal and external audit
functions on ethical grounds. The relevant section states:

Part 3 paragraph 3.20 states “Trusts should note that the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard
states that a firm providing external audit to an entity shall not also provide internal audit services to it.
In order to minimise threats to objectivity and independence in the internal scrutiny of academy trusts,

ESFA considers that the term internal scrutiny must be viewed in the same way as internal audit”.

While Mr Nice continues to be internal audit officer the necessary separation is achieved.
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Governance Statement

Review of Effectiveness .
As Accounting Officer the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system
of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the internal auditor;

the work of the external auditor;

the school resource management self-assessment tool;

the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system
of internal control by the Governance & Audit Committee and a plan to ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 5 December 2022 and signed on its

behalf by:
Luke Eﬂl%g Sava Willoughty
Luke Bailey (Dec 7, 2072 15:07 GMT) Sara Willoughby (Dec 7;2022 17:28 GMT)
Mr Luke Bailey Mrs Sara Willoughby
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As Accounting Officer of Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy | have considered my
responsibility to notify the Academy Trust Board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency
(ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding
received by the Academy Trust, under the funding agreement in place between the Academy Trust and
the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the
requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

I confirm that | and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or
improper use of all funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and
conditions of funding under the Academy Trust’s funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook
2021.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety, or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified
to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.

Sara Willoughby (Dec ?,%022 5;‘:28 GMT)

Mrs Sara Willoughby
Accounting Officer
5 December 2022
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Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law)
are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with the
Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
company law, the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:
e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
e observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2021 to 2022;
e make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- & state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company
applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of
good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have
been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and'integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 5 December 2022 and signed on its
behalf by:

Luke Baliey

Luke Bailey (Dec 7, 2072 15:07 GMT)

Mr Luke Bailey
Chair of Trustees
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy (‘the
charitable company’) for the year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the Statement of Financial
Activities (including the Income and Expenditure Account), the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash
Flows, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland', the Charities SORP 2019, and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the
Education & Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s affairs as at 31 August 2022
and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and
expenditure, for the year then ended,;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice;

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies
Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
in auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the charitable
company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included’in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. It includes the Reference and Administrative Details, the Trustees’ Report (including the
Strategic Report), and the Governance Statement. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives
rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
¢ the information given in the Trustees’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
e the Trustees’ Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’
Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: V
e adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us;
e thefinancial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
e certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e we have not obtained all the information and explanations necessary for the purposes of our
audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy

Responsibilities of the Trustees
As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the

directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and
for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable to preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate
the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the
Independent Auditors that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with iSAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect
of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

e We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to
the Academy Trust, and the sector in which it operates. These include but are not limited to
compliance with the Companies Act 2006, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102
'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities
SORP 2019, the Academy Trust Handbook 2021, and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to
2022.

e We obtained an understanding of how the Academy Trust is complying with these frameworks
through discussions with management.
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e We enquired with management whether there were any instances of non-compliance with laws
and regulations or whether they had knowledge of actual or suspected fraud. These enquiries
are corroborated through follow-up audit procedures including but not limited to a review of
legal and professional costs, correspondence and a review of board minutes.

e We assessed the susceptibility of the Academy Trust’'s financial statements to material
: misstatement, including the risk of fraud and management override of controls. We designed
our audit procedures to respond to this assessment, including the identification and testing of
any related party transactions and the testing of journal transactions that arise from
management estimates, that are determined to be of significant value or unusual in their
nature.

e -We assessed the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the
engagement team, including consideration of the engagement team’s knowledge and
understanding of the sector in which the Academy Trust operates in, and their practical
experience through training and participation with audit engagements of a similar nature.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our Independent Auditor’s Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the charitable company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company’s members as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

o

G Brown FCCA (Senior statutory auditor)

For and on behalf.of Hopper Williams & Bell Limited

Statutory Auditor

Highland House, Mayflower Close, Chandlers Ford, Eastleigh SO53 4AR

08/12/2022
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Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy
Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity
to Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy and the Education
& Skills Funding Agency

in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 1 September 2022 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts
Direction 2021 to 2022, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether
the expenditure disbursed and income received by Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy
during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to the purposes identified by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy and the ESFA in
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might
state to Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy and the ESFA those matters we are required
to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy and
the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy’s Accounting Officer
and the reporting accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Hook-with-Warsash Church of England
Academy’s funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 September 2012 and
the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed
and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions
conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s
ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement
letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you
whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material
respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August
2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do
not conform to the authorities which govern them.

38



Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy
Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity
to Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy and the Education
& Skills Funding Agency

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance
engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a
negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant
matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express
a positive opinion. :

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and
propriety of the Academy Trust’s income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

e Consideration as to whether prior approval was sought from the Secretary of State where it is
required by the Academy Trust Handbook (effective from 1 September 2021) (ATH).

e Review of any special payments to staff, including compromise agreements, to consider
whether prior approval was sought where required by the ATH and that any payments are in
line with the severance guidance published by ESFA.

e Consideration as to whether any borrowings have been made in accordance with the ATH.

e Review of any ‘minded to’ letters or Notices to Improve which have been issued to the
Academy Trust.

e Review of any transactions with related parties to ensure that they have been carried out in
accordance with the ATH.

¢ Review of governance arrangements to determine whether the requirements of the ATH have
been met.

e Review of the Academy Trust's internal controls, including whether the general control
environment has regard to the regularity of underlying transactions, including fraud
management.

e Review of the Academy Trust's procurement policies to determine effectiveness and testing a
sample of purchases to confirm that the policies have been correctly implemented.

e Identifying any conditions associated with specialist grant income and determining whether it
has been spent as the purposes intended.
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Conclusion :
"In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material
Arespects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2021 to 31

August 2022 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do

not conform to the authorities which govern them.

.

G Brown FCCA

Reporting Accountant

Hopper Williams & Bell Limited

Chartered Accountants

Highland House, Mayflower Close, Chandlers Ford, Eastleigh SO53 4AR

08/12/2022
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Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 August 2022

(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Un- Restricted Restricted Restricted Restated
restricted General Pension Fixed Asset 2021/22 2020/21
Note funds Funds Funds Funds Total Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 2 - 24,022 - 36,526 60,548 30,288
Other trading activities q 23,471 - - - 23,471 15,803
Investments 5 443 - - - 443 1,695
Charitable activities:
Funding for the academy
trust’s educational operations 3 - 2,059,471 - - 2,059,471 1,979,469
Total 23,914 2,083,493 - 36,526 2,143,933 2,027,255
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
Academy trust educational
operations 7 - 2,022,608 149,000 97,564 2,269,172 2,135,839
Net income / (expenditure) - 23,914 60,885 (149,000) -(61,038) (125,239) (108,584)
Transfers between funds 16 - (22,049) - 22,049 - -
Other recognised gains / (losses):
Actuarial gains on defined
benefit pension schemes 25 - - 1,072,000 - 1,072,000 35,000
Net movement in funds 23,914 38,836 923,000 (38,989) 946,761 (73,584)
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 156,957 221,315 (1,118,000) 3,736,146 2,996,418 3,070,002
Total funds carried forward 180,871 260,151 (195,000) 3,697,157 3,943,179 2,996,418

" The notes on pages 44 to 67 form part of these financial statements.
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Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy

Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2022

Company Number 08153776 :

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Debtors
Investments

Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year

Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability
Total net assets

Funds of the academy trust:

Restricted funds

Fixed asset fund

Restricted income fund

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

11

12
13

14

15

25

16
16
16

16

Note

2022 2022

£ £

3,697,157
83,400
153,908
433,208
670,516
(221,640)

448,876

4,146,033

(7,854)

4,138,179

(195,000)

3,943,179
3,697,157
- 260,151
(195,000)

3,762,308

180,871

3,943,179

2021 2021

£ £

3,726,534
73,731
153,600
394,504
621,835
‘ (223,853)

397,982

4,124,516

(10,098)

4,114,418

(1,118,000)

2,996,418
3,736,146
221,315
(1,118,000)

2,839,461

156,957

2,996,418

The financial statements on pages 41 to 67 were approved by the trustees and authorised for issue on 5 December

2022 and are signed on their behalf by:
Luke Baliey

Luke Bailey (Dec 7, 2022 15:07 GMT)

Mr Luke Bailey
Chair of Trustees

The notes on pages 44 to 67 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2022

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in thé repbrting period
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2021

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2022

43

Note

19
20

21

22

2022 2021

£ £
91,056 101,856
(2,244) (2,244)
(50,108) (4,273)
38,704 95,339
394,504 299,165
433,208 394,504




Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

1 Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared
under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102} {Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to
2022 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements are prepared in
sterling which is the functional currency of the Academy Trust and are rounded to the nearest £1.

Going Concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the
date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Academy Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material
uncertainties about the Academy Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

e Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions} where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

e @Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income
is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are
recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended.
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Income (continued)

¢ Other Income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

o Donated goods, facilities and services .
Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from other
trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading activities’
and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it is impractical to fair value
the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they
are sold. This income is recognised within ‘income from other trading activities’.

¢ Donated fixed assets (excluding Transfers on conversion/into the Academy Trust)
Where the donated good is a fixed asset, it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this
reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from
donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated
over the useful economic life in accordance with the Academy Trust’s accounting policies.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third
party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of
the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs
attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than
one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time
spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

e Charitable Activities
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust’s educational operations, including support costs and costs

relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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Tangible Fixed Assets
Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation
and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful
economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the
asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and
carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed
asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than land and assets under construction, at rates
calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Leasehold Land and Buildings Shorter of 50 years straight line or the length of the lease
Furniture and Equipment 5 years straight line
Computer Equipment 3 years straight line

No depreciation has been provided on Iorig leasehold land as it is similar to freehold land, which does not require
depreciation.

Where the Academy Trust can identify the value of major components of freehold or leasehold buildings based
upon additions following conversion to academy status, the Academy Trust reviews whether one or more such
components have significantly different patterns of consumption of economic benefits. In such cases, the
Academy Trust allocates the cost of the asset to its major components and depreciates each component
separately over its useful life.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and
their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an 'obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can
be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will pay to
settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past
event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of
the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at
the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised
within interest payable and similar charges.

Leased Assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Current asset investments
Current asset investments comprise fixed term bank deposits. These investments are classified as a basic financial
instrument and are measured at amortised cost.

Financial Instruments
The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial
liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets
Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost.
Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank
Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value. An investment is treated as
a cash equivalent when it has a short maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Financial liabilities

Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is
not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to
deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Taxation
The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received

within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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‘Pensions Benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (‘TPS’) and
the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over employees’
working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of
current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary based on
quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded muiti-employer scheme with no
underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme
for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust
in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the
current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The
actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts
charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit
changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net
defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest
cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair
value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The
difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is
recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
Fund Accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable

objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders
where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

48



~

Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions -

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will
impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll forward approach which projects results
from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the
pensions liability at 31 August 2022. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach
and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

The assumptions used are disclosed in note 25.

Critical areas of judgement

There are no other critical areas of judgement.
2 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted 2021/22 2020/21

funds funds Total Total
£ £ £ £
Capital grants _ - 8,568 8,568 8,635
Donated fixed assets - 1,376 1,376 3,507
Other donations - 50,604 50,604 18,146
- 60,548 60,548 30,288

Total 2021 - 30,288 30,288
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3 Funding for the Academy Trust’s educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted 2021/22 2020/21
funds funds Total Total
£ £ £ £
DfE / ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 1,693,500 1,693,500 1,556,250
Pupil Premium - 56,080 56,080 48,010
UIFSM - 61,895 61,895 73,629
PE and sports grant - 19,540 19,540 19,550
Teachers' pay grant - - - 19,317
Teachers' pension grant - - - 54,584
Other DfE grants ‘ - 30,496 30,496 -
- 1,861,511 1,861,511 1,771,340
Other government grants
Local authority grants - 75,787 75,787 68,760
COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Catch-up premium - - - 32,400
COVID-19 additional funding (non-DfE/ESFA)
Other Coronavirus funding ‘ to- 4,000 4,000 12,000
Other income from the Academy Trust’s educational operations
Trip income - 49,937 49,937 32,733
Tuition fee income - 11,333 11,333 9,971
Catering income - 54,953 54,953 47,165
Other income - 1,950 1,950 5,100
- 118,173 118,173 94,969
- 2,059,471 2,059,471 1,979,469
Total 2021 - 1,979,469 1,979,469

Funding for the Academy Trust’s educational operations has been restated in the prior year to include £34,560 of
rates income from the local authority. A corresponding adjustment has been made within premises support costs.
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4 Other trading activities

Unrestricted  Restricted 2021/22 2020/21

funds funds Total Total
£ £ £ £
Hire of facilities 16,691 - 16,691 13,213
Sale of goods and services 6,780 - 6,780 2,590
‘ _ 23,471 - 23,471 15,803

Total 2021 15,803 - 15,803

5 Investment income

Unrestricted Restricted 2021/22 2020/21

funds funds Total Total

£ £ £ £

Short term deposits 443 - 443 1,695
Total 2021 1,695 - 1,695
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6 Expenditure

Restated
Non Pay Expenditure Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2021/22 2020/21
£ £ £ £ £

Academy's educational operations:
Direct costs 1,263,198 - 176,094 1,439,292 1,391,378
Allocated support costs ' 353,086 194,444 282,350 829,880 744,461
1,616,284 194,444 458,444 2,269,172 2,135,839

Total 2021 1,540,717 179,405 415,717 2,135,839

Net income/({expenditure) for the period includes:
2021/22 2020/21

£ £

Operating lease rentals 2,613 2,186

Depreciation 89,564 82,873
Fees payable to auditor for:

Audit : 5,330 5,205

Other services 2,835 2,680

Included within expenditure are the following transactions:
Individual items above £5,000

Total Amount Reason
£ £
Gifts made by the Academy Trust 250 - -
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7 Charitable activities

Restated

2021/22 2020/21

Total Total

£ £

Direct costs — educational operations 1,439,292 1,391,378
Support costs — educational operations 829,880 744,461

2,269,172 2,135,839

Analysis of support costs: v
Educational 2021/22 2020/21

operations Total Total

£ £ £

Support staff costs 353,086 353,086 304,034

Depreciation 89,564 89,564 82,873

Technology costs 9,259 9,259 10,704

Premises costs 194,444 194,444 179,405

Other support costs 175,022 175,022 159,560

Governance costs : 8,505 8,505 7,885

Total support costs 829,880 829,880 744,461
Total 2021 744,461 744,461

Premises costs includes £8,000 (2021: £15,193) in respect of expenditure on capital projects, which were funded
by capital grants from the ESFA.

Premises costs has been restated in the prior year to include £34,560 of rates expenditure. A corresponding
adjustment has been made within rates reclaim income (note 3).
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8

a)

b)

c)

d)

Staff

Staff costs

Staff costs during the period were: -
2021/22 2020/21

£ £

Wages and salaries 1,132,430 1,100,183
Social security costs ' 101,118 94,367
Pension costs 380,100 345,803
1,613,648 1,540,353

Agency staff costs 2,636 364

1,616,284 1,540,717

Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:
2021/22 2020/21

No. No.
Teachers 17 16
Administration and support 43 42
Management ' 3 3
63 61

Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer national
insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:
2021/22 2020/21
No. No.
£70,001 - £80,000 1 1

Key management personnel

The kéy management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as
listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer
national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the academy trust
was £287,048 (2021: £281,939).
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9

10

Related Party Transactions — Trustees’ remuneration and expenses

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from employment with the
Academy Trust. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they
provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.

The value of trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

Julie Nunn Remuneration
(Staff trustee) Employer’s pension contributions paid
Nicole Whybrow to 28 Feb 2022 Remuneration
(Staff trustee) Employer’s pension contributions paid
Sara Willoughby Remuneration
(Staff trustee) Employer’s pension contributions paid
Emily Ransley from 1 March 2022 Remuneration
(Staff trustee) Employer’s pension contributions paid

2021/22

£000
10-15
0-5

5-10
0-5

75-80
15-20

10-15

2020/21
£000
10-15
0-5

35-40
5-10

75-80
15-20

During the period ended 31 August 2022, no trustees received any reimbursement of expenses (2021: none).

Trustees and officers insurance

The Academy Trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and
provides cover up to £10m. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and officers indemnity element from the

" overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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11

12

13

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

At 1 September 2021
Acquisitions
Disposals

At 31 August 2022

Depreciation

At 1 September 2021
Charged in year
Disposals

At 31 August 2022

Net book values
At 31 August 2021
At 31 August 2022

Debtors

Trade debtors
VAT recoverable
Prepayments and accrued income

Current asset investments

Bank deposits

Leasehold Furniture
Land and and Computer

Buildings Equipment Equipment Total
£ £ £ £
4,276,000 66,995 127,201 4,470,196
- 45,711 14,476 60,187
- - {5,196) (5,196)
4,276,000 112,706 136,481 4,525,187
599,760 34,956 108,946 743,662
66,640 10,980 11,944 89,564
- - (5,196) (5,196)
666,400 45,936 115,694 828,030
3,676,240 32,039 18,255 3,726,534
3,609,600 66,770 20,787 3,697,157
2021/22 2020/21
£ £
5,125 1,379
14,170 19,528
64,105 52,824
83,400 73,731
2021/22 2020/21
£ £
153,908 153,600
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14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2021/22 2020/21

£ £
Trade creditors 55,797 90,680
Other taxation and social security 22,804 21,727
Loans falling due within one year 2,244 2,244
Other creditors falling due within one year 27,677 28,226
Accruals and deferred income 113,118 80,976

221,640 223,853

2021/22 2020/21

£ £
Deferred income at 1 September 2021 65,252 64,617
Released from previous years (65,252) (64,617)
Resources deferred in the year 59,543 65,252
Deferred income at 31 August 2022 59,543 65,252

At the balance sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds received in advance for lettings booked for the
forthcoming financial year.

Loans falling due within one year comprises an interest free energy efficiency loan from Salix Finance, which is
repayable in instalments over eight years between October 2018 and September 2026.

15 Creditors: amounts falling due in greater than one year

2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Loans falling due in greater than one year 7,854 10,098

Loans falling due in greater than one year comprises an interest free energy efficiency loan from Salix Finance,
which is repayable in instalments over eight years between October 2018 and September 2026.
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16 Funds
Balance at Balance at
1 September Gainsand 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure Transfers losses 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds

General Annual Grant (GAG) - 1,693,500 (1,693,500) - - -
Pupil premium - 56,080 (56,080) - - -
UIFSM - 61,895 (61,895) - , - -
PE and sports grant - 19,540 (19,540) - - -
Other DfE grants - 30,496 (30,496) - - -
Local authority grants - 75,787 (75,787) - - -
Other Coronavirus funding - 4,000 (4,000) - - -
Other educational activities 221,315 142,195 (81,310) (22,049) - 260,151
221,315 2,083,493 (2,022,608) (22,049) - 260,151
Pension reserve (1,118,000) - (149,000) - 1,072,000 (195,000)
(896,685) 2,083,493 (2,171,608) (22,049) 1,072,000 65,151

Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed asset fund 3,726,534 - (89,564) 60,187 - 3,697,157
ESFA capital grants (DFC) 9,612 8,568 (8,000) (10,180) - -
Other capital grants - 26,582 - (26,582) - -
Donated fixed assets - 1,376 - (1,376) - -
‘ 3,736,146 36,526 (97,564) 22,049 - 3,697,157
Total restricted funds 2,839,461 2,120,019 (2,269,172) - 1,072,000 3,762,308
Total unrestricted funds 156,957 23,914 - - - 180,871
Total funds 2,996,418 2,143,933 (2,269,172) - 1,072,000 3,943,179
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16 Funds (continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General annual grant

This includes all funding received from the ESFA to carry out the objectives of the academy. It includes the school
budget share; minimum funding guarantee; education services grant; insurance; rates; and pre-16 high needs
funding streams.

Other DfE/ESFA grants
This is funding received from the ESFA for specific purposes.

Local authority grants
This is funding received from the local authority for specific purposes, for example Special Educational Needs

funding.

Other educational activities
This includes all other educational income/expenditure.

Pension reserve
This represents the negative reserve in respect of the liability on the LGPS pension scheme which was transferred
to the Academy Trust on conversion.

Fixed asset fund

The fund includes the value of the tangible fixed assets of the academy on conversion, and amounts transferred
from GAG or other restricted funds specifically for expenditure on tangible fixed assets, and the annual charges for
depreciation of these assets.

DfE/ESFA capital grants
This is funding received from the DfE/ESFA specifically for expenditure on tangible fixed assets.

Transfers between funds
Transfers to the restricted fixed asset fund represent the cost of fixed asset additions which have been funded

from restricted or unrestricted general funds.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2022. ‘
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16 Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at Balance at
1 September Gainsand 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure  Transfers losses 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds

General Annual Grant (GAG) - 1,556,250 (1,556,250) - - -
Pupil premium . - 48,010 (48,010) - - -
UIFSM - 73,629 (73,629) - - -
PE and sports grant - 19,550 (19,550) - - -
Teachers' pay grant - 19,317 (19,317) - - -
Teachers' pension grant - 54,584 (54,584) - - -
Local authority grants - 68,760 (68,760) - - -
Catch-up premium - 32,400 (32,400) - - -
Other Coronavirus funding - 12,000 (12,000) - - -
Other educational activities 153,476 113,115 (32,273) (13,003) - 221,315
A 153,476 1,997,615 (1,916,773) (13,003) - 221,315
Pension reserve (1,032,000) - (121,000) - 35,000 (1,118,000)
(878,524) 1,997,615 (2,037,773) (13,003) 35,000 (896,685)

Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed asset fund 3,792,897 - (82,873) 16,510 - 3,726,534
ESFA capital grants (DFC) 16,170 8,635 (15,193) - - 9,612
Donated fixed assets - 3,507 - (3,507) - -
3,809,067 12,142 (98,066) 13,003 - 3,736,146
Total restricted funds 2,930,543 2,009,757 (2,135,839) - 35,000 2,839,461
Total unrestricted funds 139,459 17,498 - - - 156,957
Total funds 3,070,002 2,027,255 (2,135,839) - 35,000 2,996,418

60



Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

17

18

Analysis of net assets between funds
Un-  Restricted Restricted Restricted
restricted general pension fixed asset
funds funds funds funds Total funds
£ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - - 3,697,157 3,697,157
Current assets 180,871 489,645 - - 670,516
Current liabilities - (221,640) R - (221,640)
Non-current liabilities - (7,854) - - (7,854)
Pension scheme liability - - {195,000) - (195,000)
Total net assets 180,871 260,151 {195,000) 3,697,157 3,943,179
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
Un-  Restricted Restricted Restricted
restricted general pension fixed asset )
funds funds funds funds Total funds
£ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - - 3,726,534 3,726,534
Current assets 156,957 455,266 - 9,612 621,835
Current liabilities - (223,853) - - (223,853)
Non-current liabilities - (10,098) - - {10,098)
Pension scheme liability - - (1,118,000) - (1,118,000)
Total net assets 156,957 3,736,146 2,996,418

221,315 (1,118,000)

Long-term commitments, including operating leases
Operating leases

At 31 August 2022 the total of the Academy Trust’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases was:

2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Amounts due within one year 3,580 2,400
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19 Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Net expenditure for the reporting period (125,239) (108,584)
Adjusted for:
Depreciation 89,564 82,873
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (9,944) (12,142)
Interest receivable . (443) (1,695)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 131,000 104,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 18,000 17,000
Increase in debtors (9,669) (180)
(Decrease) / increase in creditors (2,213) 20,584
Net cash provided by Operating Activities 91,056 101,856
20 Cash flows from financing activities
2021/22 2020/21
‘ £ £
Repayments of borrowing ’ (2,244) (2,244)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,244) (2,244)
21 Cash flows from investing activities
2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 443 1,695
Increase in current asset investments (308) {(1,600)
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (58,811) (13,003)
Capital grants from DfE Group ‘ 8,568 8,635
Net cash used in investing activities (50,108) (4,273)
22 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
2021/22 - 2020/21
£ £
Cash at bank and in hand 282,465 243,865
Notice deposits (less than 3 months) . 150,743 150,639
Total cash and cash equivalents . 433,208 394,504
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23 Analysis of changes in net debt

24

Cash
Cash equivalents

Loans falling due within
one year

Loans falling due after
more than one year

Total

Members liability

At1l Acquisition/ New Other At 31
September Cash  disposal of finance non-cash August
2021 flows subsidiaries leases changes 2022

£ £ £ £ £ £

243,865 38,600 - - - 282,465
150,639 " 104 - - - 150,743
394,504 38,704 - - - 433,208
(2,244) - - - - (2,244)
.(10,098) 2,244 - - - (7,854)
382,162 40,948 - . - 423,110

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a

member.
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25 Pension and similar obligations

The Academy Trust’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme England
and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-
teaching staff, which is managed by Hampshire County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March
2019.

Contributions amounting to £27,625 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 (2021: £27,887) and are
included within creditors. ’

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers
have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of
salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM
Treasury every four years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme
valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other
factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was
published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent
consultation are: _

* employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy).

« total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to
the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the
notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of
£22,000 million.

e the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is
2.4% above the rate of CPIl. The assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of
earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return
including earnings growth is 4.45%. '

64



Hook-with-Warsash Church of England Academy
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

25 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.

The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £173,113 (2021: £173,568).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The Academy
Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The Academy
Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was as follows:

2022 - 2021

£ £

Employer’s contributions 68,000 66,000
Employees’ contributions v 21,000 20,000
89,000 86,000

The agreed contribution rates for future years are 18.9% for employers and 5.5% to 12.5% for employees.
Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of
an Academy Trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the

Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2022 2021
Rate of increase in salaries 3.8% 3.7%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.8% 2.7%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 4.1% 1.7%
Inflation assumption (CP1) . 2.8% 2.7%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: -

2022 2021
Retiring today
Males 22,9 23.1
Females 254 25.5
Retiring in 20 years
Males 24.7 24.8
Females , 27.1 27.3
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25 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Increase/(reduction) in
defined benefit obligation

2022 2021
£ £
Discount rate +0.1% (42,000) (64,000)
Discount rate -0.1% 42,000 64,000
Mortality assumption — 1 year increase 52,000 111,000
Mortality assumption — 1 year decrease (52,000) (108,000)
The Academy Trust’s share of the assets in the scheme were:
2022 2021
£ £
Equities 1,003,000 1,039,000
Gilts 263,000 319,000
Property 135,000 108,000
Cash and other liquid assets 16,000 14,000
Other 316,000 314,000
Total market value of assets 1,733,000 1,794,000
The actual return on scheme assets was a loss of £115,000 {(2021: a gain of £272,000).
Amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities
2021/22 2020/21
£ £
Current service cost 199,000 170,000
Interest income (31,000) (26,000)
interest cost ' 49,000 43,000
Total amount recognised in the SOFA 217,000 187,000
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25 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

At 1 September
Current service cost
Interest cost

Employee contributions
Actuarial (gain) / loss
Benefits paid

At 31 August

Changes in the fair value of Academy Trust’s share of scheme assets:

At 1 September
Interest income
Actuarial {loss) / gain
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits paid

At 31 August

26 Related party transactions

2021/22 2020/21
£ £
2,912,000 2,518,000
199,000 170,000
49,000 43,000
21,000 20,000
(1,218,000) 211,000
(35,000) (50,000)
1,928,000 2,912,000
2021/22 2020/21
£ £
1,794,000 1,486,000
31,000 26,000
(146,000) 246,000
68,000 66,000
21,000 20,000
(35,000) (50,000)
1,733,000 1,794,000

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the compoéition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have

an interest. The following related party transactions took place in the financial period:

Expenditure Related Party Transactions:

A close family member of D Nice (Trustee and Member)

e The academy trust paid remuneration totalling £45,815 (2021: £44,814) and employer's pension contributions

totalling £10,612 (2021: £12,549) during the period.

A close family member of S Willoughby (Trustee)

e The academy trust paid remuneration totalling £1,639 (2021: £828) and employer's pension contributions

totalling £nil (2021: £nil) during the period.
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